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3 -----------------------x 
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5 

PROCEEDINGS 
2 (The court reporter was duly sworn.) 
3 THE COURT: All right. In this matter, 
4 we're back for a motion to compel. All right. 
5 This comes on your motion, sir, however you want to 
6 handle it. 
7 :MR. NADELHAFT: Good morning, Your 
8 Honor -- or good afternoon, Your Honor. Adam 
9 Nadelhaft on behalf of Amber Heard. You'll notice 
10 Mr. Murphy is usually with me; I'm happy to 
11 announce that, between the time ofmy office and 
12 driving here, he's now a new father, so ... 
13 THE COURT: Oh, well, good for 
14 Mr. Murphy. 
15 :MR. NADELHAFT: A baby boy. 
16 THE COURT: Oh, great. 
17 :MR. NADELHAFT: So he's very excited 
18 about that. 
19 THE COURT: His first child? 
20 :MR. NADELHAFT: First child. So he's 
21 welcome -- he's a new parent. 
22 THE COURT: Oh, that's very nice. 

2 

6 

:MR. NADELHAFT: Let the adventure begin. 
So if you have -- I think it would make 

3 sense to have our chart, which we started with 
4 Beard's Third Request for Admissions. And 
5 throughout a lot of these things, I think one of 
6 · the issues I have seen is that we had 
7 meet-and-confers. We were working with Mr. Depp's 
8 counsel on a lot of these, and then I don't know if 
9 there was miscommunications amongst our counsel or 
10 we thought we'd have agreements and things were 
11 revised, but they're not really responding to a lot 
12 of what we're actually putting forward in front of 
13 you. 
14 So, with that said, so the first in the 
15 chart is the photographs, the authenticity, and 
16 it's a number ofrequests, these RF As here. And 
17 what -- all we're asking for from these third RF As 
18 is that Mr. Depp admit or deny the authenticity of 
19 the photos in these various requests. We're not 
20 asking for it now. We're asking for it after they 
21 get the photos from Mr. Young, which you had 
22 requested -- which you ordered. 

And during one of their motions, they 
2 said that, once we have the forensic imaging, we 
3 can admit or deny, and we'll be happy to do that. 
4 That's what we're asking for. 21 days after they 
5 receive the photos from Mr. Young, they admit or 
6 deny the authenticity. We're not requesting that 
7 they admit it if they -- obviously, if they deny 
8 the authenticity,. that's their prerogative, but we 
9 would know what photographs· are at issue. And 
10 that's all we're asking for. 
11 THE COURT: All right. Any objection to 
12 that? 

7 

13 MR. CHEW: Good morning, Your Honor. May 
14 it please the Court. Ben Chew for Plaintiff Johnny 
15 Depp. 
16 Yeah, we're just going on what they're 
17 demanding, and they're demanding us to admit or 
18 deny the authenticity of photographs we haven't 
19 received so Mr. Young --
20 THE COURT: So, once you receive them, 
21 you agree that --
22 MR. CHEW: We will respond --

1 THE COURT: -- within 21 days, you'll 
2 admit or deny the authenticity, 
3 MR. CHEW: We will certainly respond, 
4 yes. Absolutely, Your Honor. 
5 THE COURT: All right. 
6 MR. NADELHAFT: Sure, I mean, that --
7 THE COURT: That's next-- next? 

8 

8 MR. NADELHAFT: Okay. We provided that 
9 in consent order. We talked about it with them on 
10 Wednesday. I'm not -- anyway. 
11 The next one is audio transcripts from 
12 these same RF As. We both have -- both sides have 
13 the recordings. We put together transcripts to 
14 help the jury. We're asking for them to admit or 
15 deny the authenticity of the transcripts. If they 
16 have an issue with a particular transcript and 
17 believe that it should say something else, that's · 
18 fine. We're not saying they have to admit it. We 
19 want to know exactly what -- what transcripts will 
20 be at issue. 
21 THE COURT: All right. 
22 MR. CHEW: Your Honor, again, here we 
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9 

1 submit that this is overly broad; that the purpose 

2 of the RF As is to say is this tape genuine. But 

3 what they're asking us to do is not only to admit 

4 or deny the genuineness of the tape, but she's 

5 asking us to admit that her people accurately 

6 transcribed· recordings, which is not, we would 

7 submit, a proper request for authenticity under 

8 Rule 4:11. 

9 Either -- she's asking us to go line 

10 through line through hundreds of pages of her own 

11 or her attorney's transcription, so we don't think 

12 that's an appropriate RF A, particularly given 

13 they're way over the 30 limit. And you can go over 

14 the 30 limit to authenticate documents or 

15 authenticate tapes, but that's not what they're 

16 asking us to do. They're asking us to 

17 authenticate --

18 THE COURT: Their work product. 

19 MR. CHEW: -- their work product, which 

20 we respectfully submit is over the limit and it's 

21 beyond the scope of the rule. 

22 THE COURT: All right. Yes, sir. 
10 

1 MR. NADELHAFT: What we're asking for is 

2 really so -- if tl1ey have an issue -- they have 

3 transcripts, as I understand it, from what our 

4 discussions, too, of these recordings, and we think 

5 it's best for the jury to have one transcript that 

6 we have agreed on. 

7 So what we're saying is, if you don't 

8 agree with the transcript, tell us why, and we can 

9 hopefully work that out. 

10 THE COURT: Right. 

11 

1 think that's a discovery response. All right? 

2 MR. NADELHAFT: Mm-hmm. Okay. 

3 So the next is the 17th Request for 

4 Production ofDocun1ents, and those are 48 -- in the 

5 17th Request for Production, those are RFPs 48 

6 through 59, 65 through 72, 79 through 91, and 106 · 

7 through 119. 

8 If you recall, Mr. Depp sought these same 

9 things a couple oftimes ago when we were here, and 

10 we had had a consent order, trying to get -- trying 

11 to say, Hey, they're the same thing. At that 

12 point, it wasn't in front of you. Mr. Chew said 

13 that they would produce _the documents at the 

14 appropriate time . 

. 15 We have spoken to their counsei who 

16 seemed to agree to it. Their papers seem to agree 

17 to it. I'm riot sure what the dispute is because 

18 they _think that they're going to agree to 

19 produce -- we're asking for the statement -- for 

20 the various statements that they produced the 
21 documents referring to or reflecting.the incidents, 

22 exactly tl1e same language you ordered with Mr. Depp 

I and exactly the same on these various statements. 

2 And from what I have read of their 

3 papers, tl1ey're agreeing to produce that 

4 infonnation, so I don't think there's a dispute. 

5 THE COURT: All right. Is there a 
6 dispute, Mr. Chew? 

7 MR. CHEW: Your Honor, again, this falls 
8 under the category -- I mean, Elvis has Jong since 

9 left the building in tenns of they have propounded 

10 16 RFPs, thousands ofRFPs. All of this is 

12 

11 MR. NADELHAFT: That's all we're asking 11 subsumed in tl10se. Those are now the l 7tl1 RFPs, 

12 for. 

13 THE COURT: I understand that. I just 

14 don't think that's discovery request. I tl1ink 

15 that's more of a trial preparation request,. so .I 
16 can't require tlmt. I assume, in preparation for 

17 trial, everybody is going to have transcripts that 
18 tl1ey're going to want the jury to look at, and 

19 you're going to have to work togetl1er to agree on 

20 what the transcript is going to be. 

21 MR. NADELHAFT: Okay. 

22 THE COURT: But, I mean, I just don't 

12 which contain 217 individual requests. 

13 · The problem with this one, in addition to 

14 tl1e fact that it's wildly duplicative, it has 

15 language that both Chief Judge White and Your Honor 

16 have held as too broad: "All documents suppo1iing, 

17 refuting, or othe1wise relating to incidents." 
18 What we l;iave produced and would agree to 

19 double-check are "all non-privileged documents that 

20 reflect or refer to the alleged incidents of abuse 
21 between Mr. Depp and Ms. Heard to the extent not 

22 previously produced." And that's really a co1runon 
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1 theme that will run through all of these requests 

2 as far as the 17th RFPs. 

3 We have produced all of this, but that's 

4 really the scope. But the problem here is 

5 "supporting, refuting, or otherwise relating." 

6 It's just wildly overbroad, Your Honor. 

7 THE COURT: All right. Do you have any 

8 objection to the language that he just stated? 

13 

9 MR. NADELHAFT: Respectfully, Your Honor, 

1 O we have -- if you have the chart that we have, 

11 that's not the language we're asking for. We're 

12 asking for: "Mr. Depp shall produce any responsive 

13 documents, referring to or reflecting the incidents 

14 descnbed." 

15 We understood your orders from the last 
16 time. We worked with them. We provided them 

17 consent orders. And this is going to be a theme 

18 throughout. They're going based off of our 

19 original RFPs. We have been trying to work with 

20 them on this for weeks and have presented them 

21 consent orders. We have revised the requests 

22 pursuant to your order. 

1 So, yet, if you agree to the language we 

2 have here in the revised RFPs, then we're 

3 comfortable with that. 

4 THE COURT: To say that -- yeah, I think 

5 you both have the same language now, "reflect or 

6 refer." So if you still have anything that's in 

7 your possession that you haven't turned over, the 

8 "reflect or refer" will be the language we use. 

9 Okay? 

14 

10 MR. NADELHAFT: Absolutely, Your Honor. 

11 THE COURT: All right. And --
12 MR. NADELHAFT·: One moment, Your Honor. 

13 I'mjust going to make myself a note. 

14 THE COURT: Sure. So that should go 

15 through all the 17. All right. 
16 MR. NADELHAFT:° And just so we're all on 

17 the same page, I understand that that would be 

18 revised RFPs 48 through 59, 65 through 72, 79 
19 through 91, and 106 through 119 as reflected in our 

20 chart. 
21 THE COURT: Con-ect. 

22 MR. CHEW: That's consistent with our 

15 

1 m1derstanding as well, Yom Honor. 

2 l\1R. NADELHAFT: Okay. Thank you. 

3 THE COURT: Okay. Great. 

4 l\1R. NADELHAFT: Okay. Now, going to 

5 the -- Ms. Beard's 14th Request for Production, 

6 Request No. 1, this is -- again, it's a revised 

7 request. I think you may hear about certain 

8 language that was in the original, but we worked 

9 with that and tried to work with them "Please 

IO produce any documents supporting Mr. Depp's 

11 statement to Christian Carino, who is Mr. Depp's 

12 agent, in an audio recording that said, 'I have 

13 gotten emails from every fucking studio head" --

14 excuse my language -- "from every motherfucker. I 

15 didn't do a thing. I'm sorry you're going through 

16 this. I'm so sorry. Clearly, she's out of her 

17 fucking mind. She's viewed as out of her fucking 

18mind across the globe."' 

19 . And we're asking for the emails that 

20 support that statement. And I think it is relevant 

21 in a nmnber of ways. It's relevant -- if every 

22 studio didn't believe Mr. Depp -- or didn't believe 
16 

1 Ms. Heard in 2016-2017, and then, all of a sudden, 

2 believed Ms. Beard's op-ed in 2018, actually, 

3 that's probably helpful to Mr. Depp's claim 

4 It would also show that Ms. Beard's op-ed 

5 was true because it's showing that she was getting 

6 push-pack -- she was getting push-back. We're only 

7 asking for the emails that Mr. Depp is referring to 

8 here. It's not overbroad. It's not -- there's no 

9 reason why these documents shouldn't be produced. 

10 THE COURT: All right. Yes? 

11 l\1R. CHEW: Well, Yom Honor, again, I 

12 think this goes back to a point that has plagued us 

13 from the very beginning, and ChiefJudge White had 

14 spoken to Ms. Bredehoft about it in exasperation 

15 saying you make these wildly overly broad requests 
16 and then you come to court and you expect the Comt 

17 to negotiate the request that you should have 
18 propounded in the beginning. And then we get 

19 blamed for the sloppy request. And he thought that 

20 was an inappropriate way to proceed. 

21 And here, Yom Honor, we're dealing with 
22 "all documents supporting, refuting, or otherwise 
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17 

1 relating to a statement Mr. Depp made back in 2016 1 

2 in the immediate aftermath of the divorce," whereas 2 
3 the op-ed at issue was published in December 2018. 3 

4 We have already produced all documents 4 
5 relating to Mr. Depp's damages claim. The Court 5 

6 

19 

statement, any documents relate to that statement, 
that's fine. 

MR. NADELHAFT: Okay. 
THE COURT: Okay? 
MR. NADELHAFT: Okay. 

6 had previously ruled that Chief Judge White made 

7 very clear to Defendant's counsel that we would not 
8 be relitigating the divorce case, as much fun as 

9 that might be in this case. 
1 O So we're dealing with the request as it 
11 was propounded, and as propounded, it is vague, 
12 ambiguous, and wildly overly broad, supporting, 
13 relating, or otherwise relating to the statement 
14Mr. Depp made years ago in the throes of the 
15 divorce. We just respectfully submit that that's 

16 wildly overly broad. 
17 THE COURT: Okay. Yes, sir? 
18 MR. NADELHAFT: A few points. First, we 
19 want -- the purpose of the meet-and-confer and the 
20 conciliation process is to work together on the --

21 is to work together to see ifwe can come to a 

THE COURT: I think that would carry us 
7 through to any of the statements; correct? 
8 MR. NADELHAFT: So that's No. 1 on 

9 page 5. 
10 THE COURT: Right. No. 2 is another 
11 statement, isn't it? 
12 MR. NADELHAFT: Right. And then there 
13 are -- then there are two other statements in 
14 Revised Request 2 and Revised Request 3. We're 
15 asking for the -- we would ask for the same order, 

16just relating to the -- relating to the statements. 
17 THE COURT: All right. Any objection to 
18 that other than noted? 

19 MR. CHEW: I mean, given the logic of 
20the --

21 THE COURT: Okay. All right. 
22 common ground. We did. This is not a case where 22 MR. CHEW: -- part 1, it would seem to 

18 

1 we're coming in to you -- and -- it's not a case 

2 where we're coming in to you and asking us to --
3 and asking you to reduce our requests. We moved on 
4 this request, not the request that we made 
5 originally. And that's where we -- again, that's 

6 what we gave consent orders for. That's what we 
7 tried to work with them on. 
8 This is not about -- we're not 
9 relitigating the divorce. It's maybe a statement 

10 that came shortly after the divorce was filed, but 
11 it's a particular statement regarding particular 
12 emails that Mr. Depp says he received from movie 
13 studios that said, basically, I don't believe -- we 

14 don't believe that you did this. 
15 It's clearly relevant to the claims here. 
16 It's not overly broad. It's asking for the 
17 statements -- for documents supporting that 
18 statement, which would be those emails. It's, 
19 frankly, very narrow. And I don't see any reason 
20 why it shouldn't be ordered here. 
21 THECOURT: Allright. Forthis 
22 particular one, if you're just talking about that 

20 
1 apply to 2 and 3 as well --

2 THE COURT: Okay. 
3 MR. CHEW: --when our objection was 
4 stated on the record, so ... 
5 THE COURT: All right. Thank you. 

6 MR. NADELHAFT: Okay. Turning to page 

7 7 --
8 THECOURT: Okay. 

9 MR. NADELHAFT: -- because I think we 
10 covered -- those were covering --

11 THE COURT: All right. 
12 MR. NADELHAFT: What we just talked about 
13 were Revised Requests 1, 2, and 3 on pages 5 and 6 
14 of Ms. Heard's conciliation chart. 
15 Turning to page 7, this is Revised 
16 Request 13: "Please produce m1y communications 
17 between Mr. Depp or any of Mr. Depp's agents or 
18 employees on his behalf, refening to or reflecting 
19 any audio or video recordings of Mr. Depp or 
20 Ms. Heard." 
21 And Mr. Depp has not said that no 
22 documents exist, and actually, very recently, we 
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1 found, from Mr. Waldman that he -- that there's a 

2 discussion of a leaked audio and then, three days 
3 later, there is this leaked audio. 
4 The Court previously denied this 
5 discovery based on statements from Mr. Depp's 
6 counsel that this leaking never happened. It 

7 appears that it has. So we're asking for those 
8 documents as it relates to Revised Request 13. 
9 THE COURT: All right. Mr. Chew? 

21 

10 MR. CHEW: Your Honor, again, what we're 
11 objecting to here is that the request ls drafted as 
12 vague, ambiguous, overbroad, including because its 
13 use of the phrase "supporting, refuting, or 

14 otherwise relating." 
15 But more fundamentally than that, what 

16 Ms. Heard attached to her chart -- and I didn't 
17 know that the charts were supposed to have 

1 is -- it says "agents or employees." 

2 Second, again, we didn't move for the 
3 broad language. We moved for "referring or 

23 

4 reflecting." We didn't do "otherwise supporting." 
5 We took all of that out. We were -- again, we were 

6 working with your orders. We were working with 
7 their counsel. We provided them consent orders a 
8 number of times. They're arguing against something 
9 that we're not seeking. 

10 So if there is agents or employees of 
11 Mr. Depp that are -- that are leaking the --
12 leaking audios or videos, Mr. Depp has custody or 

13 control over his agents, and those documents should 
14 be produced. 
15 MR. CHEW: Your Honor, may I be heard on 
16that? 
17 THE COURT: Go ahead. If you're done, 

18 exhibits, but since she did, this is a document 18 sir. 

19 that was produced by Mr. Waldman's counsel, AR-676 .. 19 MR. NADELHAFT: Yes. 
20 It purports to be an email between Mr. Waldman, who 20 MR. CHEW: Mr. Waldman is not counsel in 
21 is not an employee of Mr. Depp, and a Keith Bishop. 
22 And it also, interestingly -- I know 

22 

1 we're -- fortunately, we're under seal here, but it 

2 was produced with all personal identifiers, so 
3 that -- it shouldn't have been produced in that 
4 format, at least here. So I would just 

5 respectfully request that, if this is ever filed, 
6 that it should have that redacted. 
7 But, at any rate, that is Mr. Waldman's 
8 document, not Mr. Depp's. Mr. Waldman will be 

9 deposed on Tuesday, so I suspect, you know, they 
IO can ask him about whatever he's attempting to 
11 convey here to Mr. Bishop. 

12 So I think that the motion should be 
13 denied as to 13. We have already produced all of 
14 the tapes that Mr. Depp has in his possession, 
15 custody, and contra~ and I guess, at this point, 
16 we're just fighting over the transcripts of those 
17 tapes. I suspect they will ask Mr. Waldman about 
18 that on Tuesday. 
19 THE COURT: Okay. Anything further on 
20 that? 
21 MR. NADELHAFT: Sure. First, Mr. Waldman 
22 is Mr. Depp's agent. He's his attorney. So that 

21 this case, and the Court has already ruled. 
22 Earlier in the case, Defendant tried to serve 

24 

1 Mr. Waldman with a Notice of Deposition, served me. 

2 And the Court denied their motion to compel and 
3 granted our motion to compel to quash, and the 
4 Court ruled that Mr. Waldman is not an employee of 

5 Mr. Depp, and, therefore, that service was 
6 improper, and, in fact, he imposed sanctions upon 
7 defendant for purportedly serving Mr. Waldman 
8 through me. 

9 Contrast, Sean Bett, who was the head of 
10 Mr. Depp's security, when Ms. Bredehoft and 
11 Mr. Nadelhaft sent me a Notice of Deposition for 
12 Mr. Bett, you know, that was appropriate, and we 
13 worked it out that way. 

14 But Mr. Waldman is an independent 
15 contractor, and yes, he is an attorney, but he is 
16 not Mr. Depp. 
17 THE COURT: All right.. 
18 MR. NADELHAFT: May I speak briefly on 
19 that? 
20 THE COURT: Yes, sir. 
21 MR. NADELHAFT: I'm not sure what 
22 Mr. Waldman's relationship with Mr. Depp is this 
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25 

1 moment, but it was clear he was his agent at the 

2 time, and Mr. Depp would still have custody or 
3 control over an attorney working for him. He's 
4 allowed to get his files from Mr. Waldman. 
5 And it's not only related to solely to 

6 Mr. Waldman. It's any agents or employees of 
7 Mr. Depp. We have this evidence of Mr. Waldman 
8 doing this, but that -- I mean, that's what we can 
9 point to today, but it's not -- the request is not 

10 solely limited to Mr. Waldman. 
11 THE COURT: I understand; but based on 
12 the proffer that they have tnrned over everything 
13 on this and we have gone through this before, I'm 
14 going to deny 13. 

15 All right. Next one? 
16 MR. NADELHAFT: Okay. Request Number --
17 Revised Request 14 regarding documents or 
18 connnunications referring to or reflecting any 

19 purported investigation of Ms. Heard in Australia. 
20 As I'm understanding Mr. Depp's position 
21 now, they're saying it's not -- the issue is not 
22 relevant to this case. If that's their issue -- if 

26 

1 that's what they're saying, then we won't -- we're 
2 not going to be trying to put this forward. This 
3 wouldn't be something -- we're not going to be 

4 showing investigations of Ms. Heard in Australia. 
5 But we understand that they are making -- that 

6 that's going to be an issue that they raise, and 
7 then we should have discovery on that. 
8 If they're not making it an issue, if 
9 they're saying it's totally irrelevant, then we 
10 won't have this request. And while you couldn't 

11 rule today whether that can come in or not, we can 
12 deal with that on a motion in limine. 
13 But if they're saying it's totally 

14 irrelevant, we won't make this request. But if 
15 they're claiming it is relevant, then we need this 
16 discovery to be able to defend against these 
17 accusations of the investigations of Amber. 
18 THE COURT: All right. Thank you, sir. 
19 MR. CHEW: It's just funny-- I mean, I'm 
20 sorry, Your Honor, but it's a funny thing, but the 
21 issue -- the issue of the dogs in Australia is not 
22 part of this case. I mean, I would respectfully 

27 

1 submit that it was a side show. They submitted a 
2 declaration of the former property manager for 
3 Mr. Depp while they were together, and he said in 

4 the declaration that Ms. Heard ordered him and her 
5 then-personal assistant to lie in Australia about 
6 their bringing the dogs into Australia, and he 
7 refused to lie on her behalf 

8 What is relevant in that declaration and 
9 is part of this case is that he observed the two . 
10 together, and he never saw Mr. Depp engage in any 

11 violence, never saw.any marks on Ms. Heard, and to 
12 the contrary, he saw Ms. Heard frequently yell at 
13 Mr. Depp and abuse him, not physically but --
14 THE COURT: So you won't be asking 
15 questions about dogs. 
16 MR. CHEW: We're keeping -- I think we 
17 would not insult the Court by bringing the dogs 

18 into the court. 
19 THE COURT: All right. Well, then it 
20 doesn't seem to be relevant. 

21 MR. NADELHAFT: And just so it's clear 
22 for everybody, no dogs -- no investigations of 

28 

1 Ms. Heard in Australia. If that's the case, then 
2 we're not -- then we have no issue --

3 MR. CHEW: I don't believe that's part of 
4 this case, Your Honor. 
5 THE COURT: All right. 

6 MR. CHEW: I mean, her credibility is at 
7 issue in this case repeatedly, but... 
8 THE COURT: Okay. All right. . 
9 MR. NADELHAFT: Okay. So -- all right. 
10 I just want to make sure, then, because if it goes 

11 into Mr. Depp's bodyguard starting to talk about 
12 Ms. Heard with the investigation and anything she 
13 said there, tlmt -- he's saying that that's now not 
14 going to be part of tl1e case. I just want to make 
15 sure of that. 
16 THE COURT: Is that what we're saying? 
17 MR. CHEW: I don't believe we're 
18 litigating the issue of the dogs, Your Honor. 
19 THE COURT: Okay. 
20 MR. NADELHAFT: Okay. Thank you. 
21 THE COURT: All right. Next one? 
22 MR. NADELHAFT: Okay. This is in 
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1 Ms. Beard's Request for Production 16, Revised 

2 Request No. 1. And I think Mr. Chew is going to 

3 come up and talk about how widely overbroad it was. 

4 We began work -- trying to work with Mr. Depp's 

5 counsel on this, which we have done over weeks, and 

6 said, "Produce any communication sent by Mr. Depp 

7 containing the word "monster" from January 1st, 

8 2012, to the present. We're not looking for movie 

9 or television scripts." 

10 Ms. Heard contends that "monster" refers 

11 to Mr. Depp's alter ego that's repeatedly violent. 

12 Mr. Depp contends the word refers to something 

13 else. Depp's counsel -- Mr. Depp's counse4 when 

14 we were speaking with somebody during a 

15 meet-and-confer said that he thought we could reach 

16 an agreement on this, but then, later, they 

17 wouldn't. 

18 Again, we're only seeking the 

19 communications from Mr. Depp containing the word. 

20 It should be -- and I think there they're also 

21 saying it should only be limited to disputes 

22 between Amber and Mr. Depp, but if Mr. Depp is 

30 

1 calling himself a monster to other people like when 

2 he gets drunk or high, that he bec01ries a monster, I 

3 . think that's relevant for the jury to understand 

4 that it's not only with Ms. Heard, because he's 

5 contending -- Mr. Depp's contending that only 

6 Ms. Heard has ever complained about him. Everyone 

7 else thinks he's a saint. 

8 WeR if he's saying this to other 

9 people, I think the jury should be able to consider 

10 that. 

11 THE COURT: All right. Thank you. 

12 MR. CHEW: Your Honor, to be clear, 

13 Mr. Depp has never said that he's a saint or that 

14 m1ybody says he's a saint. What he is saying, 
15 because it's true, is that there's not a woman on 

16 the planet, other than Ms. Heard, who ever said 

17 that he raised a hand. 
18 And other than Ms. Heard, the only person 

19 who suggested that she saw anything was her sister, 

20 Whitney, in one very garbled incident on a 

21 staircase, which is contradicted by a disinterested 

22 witness where -- I mean, she changed her story many 

JI 
1 times, but the best Whitney could come up with is 

2 that Mr. Depp may have touched her with part of his 
3 mm as he was coming up the stairs. 

4 THE COURT: Let's just focus on the word 

5 "monster," though, I mean --

6 MR. CHEW: Yeah, "monster," again, Your 

7 Honor, we have already produced the correspondence 

8 where the two of them, referring to "monster." So, 

9 in other words, long since we produced the 

10 correspondence between Ms. Heard and Mr. Depp that 

11 talk about "monster," what this is asking for --

12 and it is -- is every single piece of paper that 

13 might have the word "monster" in it. 

14 There's nobody else who ever called 

15 Mr. Depp a monster, but -- so we have produced 

16 everything that exists, but if the question the RFP 

17 has drafted, it says "everything containing the 

18 word 'monster' from January 2012 to the present," 

19 and I just think that's wildly overly.broad. 

20 THE COURT: Okay. Yes, sir. 

21 MR. NADELHAFT: Again, the request 

22 doesn't -- is not seeking that. We have worked 

1 with -- we have been working. We revised the 

2 request. We're not moving for any documents 

32 

3 seeking the word "monster." We're moving for any 

4 c01mnunications sent by Mr. Depp containing the word 

5 "monster," and we're not looking for television 

6 scripts or anything else regarding his --

7 THE COURT: But you're including text 

8 messages, emails --

9 MR. NADELHAFT: Text and emails where he 

10 is referring -- if he is referring to himself as a 

11 monster or he said somebody else called hin1 a 

12 monster, it shouldn't just be related to a 

13 communication he sent to Amber calling him a 

14 monster. 
15 I mean, he is saying "monster" means 

16 something different than what Amber is saying, and 
17 so ifhe is saying "monster" in other places, the 

18 jurors should be able to -- we should be able to 

19 ask Mr. Depp about it at tria4 and the jury sl1ould 

20 be able to understand what that -- should have an 

21 idea of what that means. 

22 I think other communications where he is 
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I sending'it, saying the word -- referring to himself 
2 as a monster is highly relevant here, given that 
3 there is -- both sides are disagreeing as to what 

33 

4 he meant by the word "monster" when he was saying 
5 it to Amber. 
6 THE COURT: All right. I understand your 
7 argument. I just -- I think it is overly broad for 
8 every time he used the word "monster" in the last 
9 ten years and any text or email to any person. I 

10 think it's clearly overbroad, so I'm going to deny 
11 that. 
12 All right. The next one? 

13 MR. NADELHAFT: Okay. Request 40 is "any 
14 documents referring to or reflecting any instances 
15 of anger, anger management, shouting, yelling, 
16 scolding; or speaking in a harsh tone by Mr. Depp 
17 toward any person.". 
18 Now, there's not a time liniit in this 
19 particular.request, but our discovery does have a · 
20 cut-off of 2008 to the present. We can move 
21 that -- we can certainly move th.at forward more, 
22 but we're not -- I think one of the things they 
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1 talk about is possible instances of abuse. We're 
2 not seeking that. We're not seeking -- we're just 
3 seeking actual instances of anger, anger 
4 management, shouting, again, because Mr. Depp is, 
5 as we are understanding it, claiming that it is 
6 different; that Ms. Heard is only one making these 
7 sorts of accusations against him 
8 THE COURT:· All right. 
9 MR. CHEW: Your Honor, I mean, this one 
1 O is really hard to respond to. I mean, the request 
11 is propounded: "All documents referring or 
12 relating to any instances 01; possible instances of 
13 issues with anger, anger management, shoutin~, 
14 yelling, scolding, or speaking in a harsh tone by 
15 Mr. Depp toward any person." 
16 I mean, Your Honor, I have probably done 
17 that six times this morning with the dog and 

. 18 getting the kids to school, I mean, not to be 
19 facetious, Your Honor, but this is really possible 
20 instances of anger. I mean, that's just -- there's 
21 no time restriction. It's impossibly overly broad. 
22 "Possible issues -- possible instances of issues 
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1 with anger." I can't even unpack that. 
2 I mean, one of the problems is, when we 
3 deposed Ms. Heard, is that she has a shifting 
4 definition of abuse. When it comes to her, she 
5 defines abuse if Mr. Depp raised his voice to her, 
6 which is not a nice thing to do; that's abuse. 
7 But when she testified -- and this is a 
8 ve:r;y sad subject, which I wouldn't raise in open 
9 court -- but when Ms. Heard and her sister Whitney 
1 O Heard testified that their father -- and we have no 
11 reason to disbelieve them -- hit her with her --
12 with his fist on various parts of her body, and 
13 when he hit her on various parts of her body with 
14his belt-- and Whitney, the sister, was more 
15 forthcoming than Ms. Heard was, and I don't fault 
16 Ms. Heard for not being forthcoming on that -- she 
17 testified that was not abuse because it was done by 
18 her father. 
19 So -- . and when she assaulted her 
20 then-girlfriend or wife, that wasn't abuse, even 
21 though that's physical because she did it in a 
22 loving way. 

1 So, Your Honor, this kind of goes to, you 
36 

2 ki}ow, an ever-shifting view of what Ms. Heard· 
3 believes is abuse: I mean, our understanding of 
4 what we're suing about is the fact that there was 
5 not physical abuse. 
6 But.this request is all over the map, 
7 Your Honor, and we would ask that the Court deny 
8 it. Mr. Depp has never denied that he hasn't 
9 spoken to people in a harsh tone at times, but 
10 that's -- I mean, l don't even know how to unpack 
11 this request. 
12 THE COURT: Okay. Anything further on 
13 this request?. 
14 MR. NADELHAFT: Again, he's focusing on 
1:S the request that's not in front of the Court. And 
16 the other side issues that he keeps talking about, 
17 it has nothing -- both Amber and Whitney have 
18 nothing to do with this particular request. 
19 You know, I think that documents 
20 referring -- that's in Mr. Depp's possession of his 
21 anger issues is highly relevant for the jury. 
22 THE COURT: All right. I do find that, 
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1 as written, that this is overly broad for every 1 our chart has the --
2 instance of anger without any time period, so I'm 2 THE COURT: I gotcha. 
3 going to deny it. 3 :MR. CHEW: -- actual request --
4 All right. Next one? 4 THE COURT: I gotcha. 
5 :MR. NADELHAFT: And, Judge, I assume the 5 :MR. CHEW: -- the ones that we're -- the · 
6 order would be the same, but just to be clear, 6 ones that they actually made. 
7 there was an instruction that had the time period 17 THE COURT: Okay. 
8 of 2008. So there was -- 8 :MR. CHEW: And they made, very late in 
9 THE COURT: But 2008 is still -- I would 9 discovery, after they have had the benefit of the 
10 find that overly broad. 10 Court's guidance on these things. We're dealing 
11 :MR. NADELHAFT: I understand. 'I just 11 with the actual requests in our chart. . 
12 wanted to be clear. But, thank you, Your Honor. 12 THE COURT: Gotcha. 
13 THE COURT: Mm-hmm. 13 :MR. CHEW: And it was "all documents that 
14 :MR. NADELHAFT: So the next revised 14 refer or relate to any consumption or possible 
15 request i_s Revised Request 39: "Any documents that 15 consumption of alcohol or drug use.or abuse by 
16 refer to or reflect any consumption of alcohol or 16 Mr. Depp." And we think that it should be denied 
17 drug use or abuse by Mr. Depp during the various 17 because "possible consumption" just makes it 
18 abuse of Ms. Heard or abuse of Mr. Depp time 18 incoherent. 
19 periods or property damage dates." 19 As far as alcohol .and drug abuse, the 
20 So it's particular time periods, and you 20 Comt made very clear earlier in the case that that 
21 can see in that footnote what those time periods 21 is relevant. And so those documents have been 
22 are, so we're not asking for docmnents talking · 22 produced, but we're objecting to this particular 
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1 about every time Mr. Depp drank alcohol or used . 
2 drugs. We're talking about the time period of the 
3 specific incidents, and we're asking for -- that 
4 refer or reflect. Mr. Depp has stated -- he 
5 testified that he was not high or drunk during many 
6 of these incidents, and if there ate docmnents 
7 showing that he was, that's highly relevant. 
8 THE COURT:. All right. 
9 :MR. CHEW: Your Honor, again, this is --
10 the impossibly broad language and vague language, 
11 "All docmnents that refer or relate to any 
12 con~umption or possible consumption of alcohol or · 
13 drug use or abuse by Mr. Depp." "Possible" is 
14 something that I think it niakes it vague. 
15 THE COURT: I don't have "possible" in 
16 this one. 
17 :MR. CHEW: That's the one -- that's how 
18 they propounded it. 
19 THE COURT: I have a propounded 
20 different -- oh, is this a revised one? Is that 
21 what it is? ' 
22 :MR. CHEW: Yeah, he's revising it. And 

40 

1 request that adds this element of possible abuse, 
2 and I think that's just impossible to respond to. 
3 THE COURT: Okay. 
4 :MR. NADELHAFT: We didn't move for 
5 "possible." That was not what we moved for. If 
6 you look in our briefs, if you look in our proposed 
7 order, we didn't move for "possible instances." 
8 He's arguing against something that we -- yes, it 
9 was in our original RFP, but there's a reason for 
10 the meet-and-confer, there's a reason for the 
11 conciliation process. We were trying to work with 
12 the Court's orders, work with them. We revised 
13 these requests so that they could -- so that 
14it's -- why have the meet-and-confer and 
15 conciliation process ifwe can't 1;evise it and put 
16 in front of you -- the motion is not for 
17 "possible." We're not asking for "possible use of 
18 alcohol." 
19 The motion on all 9fthese is what's in 
20 our chart. So he's arguing against something that 
21 we didn't move for. And so we :__ you know, our 
22 order -- the proposed order we sent you has this 
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1 language, not about "possible." 
2 So-~ and he's admitted it's relevant. 
3 He's admitted it's relevant -- that Mr .. Depp's 
4 alcohol and drng use is relevant during these time 
5 frames, so it should be ordered. 
6 THE COURT: All right. Which I think--
7 and he stated he's already provided, so ... 
8 MR. NADELHAFT: Well, I mean --
9 THE COURT: That's fine. I mean, we can 
10 order it, but it appears it's already been 
11 provided, so ... 
12 MR. NADELHAFT: Well, I disagree that 
13 it's been already been provided. I certainly don't 
14 think it should be denied on his representation --
15 THECOURT: I'mnotdenyingit. lean 
16 order it --
17 MR. NADELHAFT: Okay. 
18 THE COURT: -- just to let -- you know, 
19 he's saying that he --
20 MR. NADELHAFT: Right. And if it's all 
21 already been provided -- . 
22 THE COURT: That's fine.1 
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1 MR. NADELHAFT: -- then they shall so 
2 state. 
3 THE COURT: That's fme. 
4 MR. NADELHAFT: So that one.was ordered? 
5 THE COURT: Yes. 
6 MR. NADELHAFT: ·So -- and then Revised 
7 Request 42 is "any docmnents referring to or 
8 reflecting any instances of physical violence by 
9 Mr. Depp toward any person or property, including 
IO any photographs, videos, drawings, and/or 
11 descriptions of any such physical violence." 
12 Again, we think that Mr. Depp being 
13 physically violent with other people is relevant 
14 and should be -- and those docmnents should be 
15 produced. 
16 THE COl)RT: All right. Yes, sir. 
17 MR. CHEW: And, again, this is the same 
18 thing all over again. This -- again, this is what 
19 drove Chief -- well, I can't say that, but this is 
20 the same thing about which they had been 
21 admonished, drafting wildly inappropriate requests 
22 and then coming to court and try to negotiate 

I 
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1 something better and something they should have 
2 requested the first time, which is why we're here 
3 every Friday. 
4 But, at any rate, we're dealing with what 
5 they really asked us for, which was "all documents 
6 that refer or relate to any instances or possible 
7 instances of physical violence by Mr. Depp toward 
8 any person or property." No time -- you know, no 
9 time restriction in this. And "possible" -- I 
10 don't even know what a "possible instance of 
11 physical violence" is. 
12 So we would ask that the Court deny it as 
13 to -- I mean, to the extent relevant, this was 
14 ordered and producedye~rs ago.· 
15 THE COURT: All right. 
16 MR. NADELHAFT: Same thing. We had the 
17 meet~and-confer. We tried to work with them for · 
18 weeks on this. It's not that we're coming here 
19 first that we said, "No, it's only going to be 
20this, it's only going to be this." We come to 
21-court and then say, "Oh, Judge, please help us." 
22 We have been trying to work with them for 

1 weeks and weeks, and we provided them consent 
2 . orders that had the language that's in front of you 
3 in this chart. For them to -- and it's what we 
4 moved on. So for them to say that we're trying 
5 something different, it's just not true. We're not 
6 asking for possible violence. 
7 Again, if they have produced -- if they 
8 have already produced all the documents, then I 
9 guess we won't get anything else, but he's, again, 
10 admitted it's relevant, so the documents should 
11 be-~ if there are additional docmnents, they 
12. should be produced .. 
13 THE COURT: That's fme. I'll order the 
14 revised. 42 is fme. And, again, it appears that 
15 it has been already provided. 
16 Okay. Next one? 

44 

17 MR .. NADELHAFT: Revised Request 43, "Any 
18 docmnents referring to or reflecting any complaints 
19 against and/or criticisms of Mr. Depp for any 
20 conduct involving violence, abuse, damage to 
21 property, alcohol or dmg use or abuse, ii1toxicated 
22 on dmgs or alcohoL ·lateness or tardiness frorri 

PLANET DEPOS 
888.433.3767 I WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM 

24121



Transcript of Motion to Compel Hearing 

Febrnary 11, 2022 

12 (45 to 48) 

45 

1 January 1st, 2009, to the present." 

2 So, here again, we were working with your 

3 previous orders. This description is what the 

4 Court previously ordered for the other litigations, 

5 which was -- it was Exhibit 13 to our motion. 

6 We're not seeking to broad~nor otherwise 

7 change the description of the Court's prior orde1's 

8 regarding the subject matter, only that it applied 

9 to complaints or criticisms of Mr. Depp outside --
10 in addition to the other litigations. If there was 

11 particular complaints against Mr. Depp regarding 

12 violence, abuse, damage to property, alcohol use, 

13 what's in this list and what the Court ordered for 

14 the other litigations, it should -- and he has 

15 documents to that effect, it should be produced. 

16 MR. CHEW: "All documents that refer or 

17 relate to any complaints and/or criticisms against 

18 or about Mr. Depp by any person of any na~e from 

19January 1, 2019, until the present." We would ask 

20 that that be denied. 
1 

21 THE COURT: Okay. I do find thatthat's 

22 overly broad and will deny that. 
46 

1 All right. Next one? 

2 MR. NADELHAFT: Can I just step back? 

3 He's reading from our original request that --

4 THE COURT: No, I have read your --

5 MR. NADELHAFT: Okay. All right. I just 

6 want to make sure --

7 THE COURT: Yes. 

8 MR. NADELHAFT: -- you're denying the 

9 revised request. 

IO THE COURT: No, no, I'm going off the one 

11 that you have. 

12 MR. NADELHAFT: Okay. Thank you. 

13 THE COURT: And I think it's overbroad. 

14 Thank you. Your revised one, yes. 

15 MR. NADELHAFT: Revised Request 45: "Any 
16 documents referring to or reflecting any negative 

17 impact of the divorce action, the UK action, and/or 

18 Ms. Heard's allegations of abuse against you on 

19 your reputation and/or career." 

20 Again, this is revised. So if he's going 

21 to come up here -- the request has been revised. 
22 It's something that we gave them a consent order. 
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1 For weeks and weeks and weeks ago; _we talked to 

2 them about it. These are highly relevant if the UK 

3 action, the divorce action, Ms. Heard's allegations 

4 before the op-ed negatively impacted Mr. Depp's --

5 has.documents that show that it's negatively 

6 impacted Mr. Depp's career, that's totally relevant 

7 to this case, totally relevant to his damages. 

8 There's -- this request, Revised Request · 

9 45, should be granted. He's going to come up here 

10 and talk about the initial request, but, again, 

11 we -- there's a reason for the meet-and-confer, 

12 there's a reason for the conciliation. We didn't 

13 move for the original. We moved for this request. 

14 THE COURT: Okay. All right. Yes, sir? 

15 . MR. CHEW: Again, the request was "all 

16 documents that may impact negatively on.Mr. Depp or 

17 Mr. Depp's reputation."· That IS incoherent. 

18 To the extent that they seek documents 

19 that actually are within a proper scope, this was 

20 already requested and produced in response to 

21 Ms. Heard's tenth RFPs, numbers 11 and 12. This 

22 was produced years ago. 

48 
1 They just.get these requests, they 

2 retread them and make them.even broader. I mean, I 
3 don't know who did these requests, but they have to 

4 mean something. I understand what a 

5 meet-and-confer is about, but you have to make some 

6 effort. Instead of just saying, "Gee, I want all 

7 documents and let's have the Court negotiate 

8 something lesser than that." 

9 "All copies of publications reflecting 

10 negatively on the reputation and all documents 

11 reflecting reasons for the loss ofreputation, loss 

12 ofroles, loss of commercial opportunities" have 

13 all been produced in response to Ms. Heard's tenth 

14 RFP and specifically in response to numbers· 11 and 

15 12. 
16 So, to the extent that it was a 

17 reasonable request, it's already been complied 
18 with. But what we object to and we ask should be 

19 denied are producing documents that may impact 

20 negatively on Mr. Depp. 

21 THE COURT: All right. 

22 MR. CHEW: Thank you, Your Honor. 
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1 THE COURT: Okay. The revised one does 
2 not have "may," so rll order the revised, although 
3 it does appear it already has been provided. 
4 All right. Next one? 
5 MR. NADELHAFT: Okay. These are, again, 
6 in the 16th Request for Production, it's Revised 
7 Request No. 2. And, actually -- well, the request 
8 is: "Please produce any documents and 
9 communications supporting the following statement 
10 from:Mr. Depp's fourth defense to the counterclaim: 
11 'The statements forming the basis of the 
12 counterclaim were not made by counterclaim 
13 defendant."' 
14 And we might be able to do all these 
15 together. And then Requests 3 through 7 relate to 
16 his defenses regarding control over the statement. 
17 And Revised Request 8 through 16 are the defenses 
18 regarding Mr. Waldman and the counterclaims. The 
19 same for 7 through 2 7. 
20 To be clear, we're not seeking 
21 non-privileged documents. We understand your 
22 ruling. We understand, if there are privileged 

50 

1 documents, they don't need to produce it. They 
2 don't need to produce documents. 
3 If there are non-privileged documents 
4 that show that -- that support their defense --
5 support these defenses and support them in the way 
6 where we're describing them here, they should be 
7 produced. 
8 I'm not sure how some of these defenses 
9 can be made if they're going to say everything is 
10 privileged, but that's their -- that's their 
11 choice. If there are non-privileged documents 
12 relating to these various defenses described 
13 here -- and we made them particular to particular 
14 statements -- then they should be produced. 
15 THE COURT: All right. 
16 MR. CHEW: Your Honor, again, this is 
17 deja vu all over again. We had this argument on 
18 December 10th of 2021, and the Court ruled that 
19 :Mr. Depp has not waived privilege. 
20 And this is a problem, again, Your Honor, 
21 of their own making. They decided not to sue 
22 :Mr. Waldman for his defamatory statements; they 
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1 sued Mr. Depp. So the burden is theirs, and they 
2 cannot establish -- they cannot meet the burden on 
3 the counterclaims for reasons we'll describe in our 
4 motion for summary judgment. But for today's 
5 purposes, as a threshold matter, you know, the vast 
6 majority of the counterclairns, of course, were 
7 dismissed by the letter opinion dated January 4th, 
8 2021, Counts I and 3, dismissed in their entirety; 
9 the majority of Count 2. So we're left with 
10 Mr. Waldman's three statements. 
11 So this is wildly overly broad. The 
12 documents that are being sought are privileged. 
13 And then the rest is, you know, as broad as the 
14 ocean. In other words, the statements that 
15 Mr. Waldman made, basically saying this whole thing 
16 is a hoax. 
17 To the extent the documents are 
18 non-privileged, they would have already been 
19 produced because they -- that really is what this 
20 whole case is about. It's basically saying, 
21 produce all documents that prove the negative of 
22 physical abuse. 

I So, to the extent that these documents 
52 

2 are not privileged, they would -- you know, they 
3 would have already been produced. It's like 
4 saying, you know, produce all the documents that 
5 support the claims in your complaint. 
6 THE COURT: Okay. 
7 MR. NADELHAFT: All these statements that 
8 Revised Request 2, Revised Request 3 through 7, 8 
9 through 16, 17 tln·ough 27, they all relate to 
10:Mr. Depp's affirmative defenses. So :Mr. Depp has 
11 the burden, not Ms. Heard. They're not -- it's our 
12 burden to prove the counterclaims, he's right about 
13 tlmt, but it's their burden on tl1eir affinnative 
14 defenses. These are all about their affirmative 
15 defenses. 
16 Again, we're not asking for :Mr. Depp to 
17 waive privilege, but what we're saying, for all of 
18 these requests, if tl1ere are non-privileged 
19 documents showing that tl1ere was a lack of control 
20 of a third party as to the subject matter, for 
21 instance, tl1en it should be produced. I mean, it's 
22 his affinnative defense. He actually has the 
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1 burden of proving that. We have made these 
2 particular for the particular -- for the particular 
3 quotes. We're not -- they're the defamation claims 
4 that are still existing. It's not for the claims 
5 that were dismissed, and, for that reason, we ask 
6 that they be produced. 
7 THE COURT: All right. I'll grant it as 
8 to non-privileged. It sounds like it has already 
9 been turned over, but I'll grant it as to 
10 non-privileged documents. 
11 Does that put us up to ~-
12 l\1R. NADELHAFT: Sure. And just so it's 
13 clear, those are Revised Requests 2, 3 through 7, 8 
14 through 16, and 1 7 through 27 in Ms. Heard's 
15 conciliation chart. 
16 l\1R. CHEW: Your Honor, I would --
17 THE COURT: Okay. 
18 l\1R. CHEW: -- object to tha,t, ifl may, 
19 briefly. 
20 THE COURT: Okay. Sure. Go ahead. 
21 l\1R. CHEW: I mean, I certainly understand 
22 why it would apply to 2 and 3 through 7, but, in 

54 

1 our chart, I'm looking at numbers 8 through 27: 
2 "Please produce all documents and communications 
3 supporting, refuting, or otherwise related to 
4 statements in your answer to the counterclaim." 
5 That's what I have for 8 through 27. 
6 THE COURT: I have the revised ones, 
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1 MR. CHEW: And they have never recanted 
2 or withdrawn any of these things. That's why --
3 THE COURT: All right. 
4 MR. CHEW: We hate to be literal, but 
5 that's --
6 THE COURT: No, I understand. 
7 MR. CHEW: That is why they-- that's 
8 what they moved on .. What they submitted last night 
9 is not what they -- what they actually moved on. 
10 That's why there's confusion. 
11 MR. NADELHAFT: Respectfully, there's 
12 confusion because I don't -- either you're not 
13 talking to all your attorneys or you're not reading 
14 our briefs. We did not move on those RFPs. Our 
15 briefs say what we t'noved on, and you weren't 
16 responding to that. Respectfully, we weren't 
17 moving on the ones -- we gave this to you weeks and 
18 weeks and weeks ago; it wasn't last night. 
19 Last night was just the order we 
20 proposed. These are same revised requests that we 
21 had given them a consent order weeks and weeks and 
22 weeks ago. Okay. 
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1 THE COURT: Let's move on. 
2 l\1R. NADELHAFT: Thank you, Your Honor. 
3 So, then, on page 14 --_ because I think 
4 we have covered all the requests on pages 12 and 
5 13. 
6 THE COURT: Correct. 

7 which are different than that. It's "Please 7 l\1R. NADELHAFT: On page 14, Revised 
8 produce any documents and communication supporting 8 Request 37: "Documents sufficient to reflect any 
9 the following statement." 9 payments made by Mr. Depp, any of Mr. Depp's 
10 MR. NADELHAFT: It probably should be 1 O entities or agents to anyone asserting claims 
11 "statements," Your Honor. 11 against Mr. Depp for any claims relating to the 
12 THE COURT: "Statements." And then it is 12 subject matter contained in the" -- basically other 
13 the statements. "Authorized by the counterclaim 13 litigation. 
14 defendant." That's what I have; correct? 14 So what we're saying is just documents 
15 MR. CHEW: Oh, okay, well -- 15 sufficient to show what you were paying, if 
16 I\1R. NADELHAFT: Yes, that's correct. 16 anything, to the people in the. other litigations, 
17 MR. CHEW: Limited to that. Okay. 17 which was defined by this Court and was defined as 
18 Again, we're dealing with the requests as they 
19 actually were --
20 THE COURT: Right, just limited to the 
21 revised request. 
22 MR. NADELHAFT: Correct, the revised. 

18 what was relevant. So that's what we're asking for 
1901137. 
20 For 44, we're asking for documents 
21 referring to any legal matters, demands, claims, or 
22 allegations. We're basically looking for the 
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1 allegations in the other litigations. 
59 

1 refer or relate to any legal matter, demands, 
2 claims or allegations made against, about, or 2 For 46, "Documents sufficient to reflect 

3 the settlement terms in any litigation involving 
4 Mr. Depp relating to the subject matter of the$e 
5 other litigations." 

3 involving Mr. Depp, respecting -- or by any person 
4 ·or entity from January 1, 2009, until the present," 

6 And the last one, "Documents referring to 
7 any efforts by Mr. Depp to cover up, deny, falsify, 
8 or misrepresent facts or events reflecting 

5 this is overly broad. This has already been ruled 
6 on by the Court twice. 
7 "All documents reflecting to the 
8 settlement tenns of any litigation involving 

9 negatively upon him" 
10 For that last one, they say it's 

9 Mr. Depp." Again, we have researched -- I mean, we 
10 have already litigated this: The settlement 

11 overbroad, they say it's a bunch of things. 11 agreement with Mr. Bloom and his firm is 
12 Interestingly, they don't say he doesn't have the 
13 document -- any documents. I would think they 
14 would say there wouldn't be any. But if there were 
15 documents showing that he was covering up facts 
16 related -- you know, regarding these claims that 

12 confidential. The settlement agreement with TMG 
13 and the Mandels, who they deposed, is confidential. 
14 The settlement in the bodyguard's case, which was 
15 really a workers' comp case. The issue in that 
16 case was a very legalistic issue as to whether 

17 are negatively affecting him, I think that is 
18 something that is relevant and should be produced. 
19 Thank you, Your Honor. 

17 certain bodyguards were -- hired by Mr. Mandel --
18 whether they were actually workers as defined under 
19 California law or whether they were independent 

20 THE COURT: All right. Yes, sir. 
21 MR. CHEW: Your Honor, taking them one at 
22 a time, again, we have been tln·ough this.· We had 
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20 contractors, which has a huge lega~ practical 
21 implication in tenns of what they're paid overtime. 
22 That was also settled pursuant to a strictly 

1 at least two hearings, as Your Honor will remember, 1 confidential agreement. 
2 on the prior litigation: Mr. Depp's case against 2 So that's what we're talking about. I 
3 his manager, which is quite successful, but I 3 guess there's the Rocky Brooks case, which, 
4 cannot tell you how successful it was or I'd be 4 unfortunately, that trial was continued, because 
5 subject to an enormous fine; his case against his 5 that case is a joke. We have videotape of the 
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6 former lawyer, which is based on an oral contract 6 encounter in which Mr. Depp hugs Mr. Brooks after 
7 tl1at Judge Green in Los Angeles determined was 7 offering him a glass of wine and after Mr. Brooks 
8 illegal and void ab initio, pursuant to which 8 gave a picture of Mr. Depp and Mr. Brooks hugging 
9 Mr. Depp received an eight-figure settlement; I 9 to a woman he then asked out for a date. So we 
10 can't give the exact amount. 1 O were begging for that trial to go forward. 
11 We have been tlu·ough all of this before, 11 But that's what we're talking about here, 
12 and so this really is a motion for reconsideration 12 Your Honor, and the Court has already ruled on it, 
13 of the Court's two thoughtful -- of rulings on 13 and the Court should, again, reject those requests 
14 tlus. So I don't know what we're doing here on 14as overly broad. 
15 this. 15 I think there was one more: "All 
16 "Any payments made by Mr. Depp to anyone 16 documents reflecting in any maimer to Mr. Depp's 
17 asserting claims against Mr. Depp from January 1, 17 efforts to cover up, deny, falsify, or misrepresent 
18 2009, to the present." Again, tlus Court has 18 facts or events reflecting negatively upon lum." 
19 already ruled on what of the prior litigation 19 Well, Mr. Depp is notlung if not honest. 
20 should come in and shouldn't. Tlus is overly broad 20 We'll usually too honest. So it's overly broad. 
21 and irrelevant. 21 It's not relevant, not reasonably calculated to 
22 With respect to 44, "All documents that 22 lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. 

PLANET DEPOS 
888.433.3767 I WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM 

24125



Transcript of Motion to Compel Hearing 

February 11, 2022 

16 (61 to 64) 

61 

1 There would be no documents, but, as drafted, we 
2 respectfully submit that should be -- that should 
3 be denied, Your Honor. 
4 THE COURT: All right. Yes, sir. 
5 MR. NADELHAFT: Thank you, Your Honor. 
6 First, as to the various settlement agreements, if 
7 they're confidential .:_ I mean, there's cases deal 
8 all the time with there being a confidential 
9 settlement agreement in another case. We can deal 
10 with that in a protective order if we can -- if we 
11 need to. Just because something was marked as 
12 confidential in another case, there's ways to 
13 work -- there's ways to work through that. 
14 We're also asking for documents 
15 sufficient to show, so if there's -- I mean, we're 
16 happy to work with Mr. Depp, and, ifneed be --
17 hopefully wouldn't need be, but we'd be happy to 
18 work with Mr. Depp, how to figure that out. 
19 Regarding -- you know, regarding the last 
20 request, he didn't say there were no documents, and 
21 if he's -- and if Mr. Depp is falsifying or 
22 misrepresenting facts that negatively reflect on 

1 his reputation, that is highly relevant to this 
2 case, which is all about Mr. Depp's reputation. 
3 So, thank you, Your Honor. 
4 THE COURT: Well, thank you, sir. I 
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5 think he did say there were none, but, anyway, we 
6 have gone over this before, and I do remember this 
7 hearing, and I'm not going the relitigate it. I'm 
8 going to deny the motion. I think it's overly 
9 broad, and it's not relevant to the matter before 

lOus. 
11 MR. NADELHAFT: Thank you. 
12 THE COURT: That does refer to that whole 
13page. 
14 MR. NADELHAFT: Okay. Thank you, Your 
15 Honor. So that's for Revised Request 37, 44, 46 
16 and forty --
17 THE COURT: Right, correct. 
18 MR. NADELHAFT: Okay. Thank you, Your 
19Honor. 
20 All right. The last one on page 15 is 
21 Revised Request 38: "Any video recordings, audio 
22 recordings, photographs, or images of Ms. Heard, 
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1 including any copies of anything recorded by 
2 Mr. Depp or any of the entity's representatives or 
3 agents from January 1st, 2012, to the present." 
4 We're not asking for his phone. We're 
5 not asking for forensic imaging. We're not asking 
6 for any -- we're not asking for that. But ifhe 
7 has --.if he has in his possession photographs, 
8 recordings, images of Ms. Heard that haven't been 
9 produced -- they're asking for the same thing ofus 
1 O for Mr. Depp, so it should be -- they should be 
11 produced. He may say that all of this has been 
12produced. If it has, great. Ifithasn'tbeen, I 
13 think all the images he has of Ms. Heard are 

· 14relevant. 
15 And we're not asking, again, for forensic 
16 imaging or anything like that. We're just 
17 asking -- given that the claims are about what 
18 happened to Ms. Heard. 
19 THE COURT: All right. 
20 MR. NADELHAFT: Thank you, Your Honor. 
21 MR. CHEW: Yes, Your Honor. That's 
22 correct. I mean, we have already agreed to produce 
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1 all video and audio recordings of Ms. Heard and 
2 photographs of Ms. Heard during their relationship. 
3 The only caveat was there was an issue about 
4 Mr. Bert having the photograph which was not --
5 which they have. So that was our quibble with the 
6 request. 
7 . But, yes, we have agreed to produce 
8 everything in Mr. Depp's possession, custody, and 
9 control. 
10 THE COURT: Okay. All right. So we can 
11 order that. That's ah"eady been taken care of. 
12 MR. NADELHAFT: I believe, Your Honor, I 
13 think that is it. 
14 THE COURT: Is this the last motion to 
15 compe~ by any chance? 
16 MR. CHEW: I hope so, Your Honor. 
17 MR. NADELHAFT: I don't know. I mean, we 
18 don't have anything updated. 
19 THE COURT: I know discovery closes March 
20 11th. 
21 MR. NADELHAFT: Right. 
22 THE COURT: I have that date circled on 
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1 my calendar. 1 THE COURT: -- Webex. 

2 What other -- just one issue I wanted to 2 MR. NADELHAFT: She can either do by 
3 phone or --3 discuss with you: I have been getting; I want to 

4 say, numerous accounts -- requests for a pool 4 THE COURT: Phone or I can set up a Webex 
5 camera. Now, I don't know how either side feels 

6 about that issue, but I would like to set it for a 
7 short hearing just so, if you can look at the 
8 statute, decide what your view is on it. And if 
9 that's something you are interested in, how you 
IO think that would proceed. 
11 So if you could kind of do that. So I'd 

12 like to set a short hearing for that kind of 
13 relatively-- probably in the next two weeks just 
14 because, if that some route that we're taking, 
15 there's a lot of moving parts that need to be taken 

16 care of for that. 
17 So, I don't know, are you available in 

18 two weeks from today? 
19 MR. NADELHAFT: Oh, you're asking for two 

20 weeks from today? Let me just check. 
21 THE COURT: Well, yeah. 
22 MR. CHEW: Yes, YourHonor. 

1 
66 

THE COURT: It would be in the afternoon 

2 about 2:00 because I have a morning docket. 
3 :MR. NADELHAFT: About 2:00 in the 
4 afternoon? Okay. 
5 MR. CHEW: We're available at the Court's 

6 convenience. 
7 THE COURT: On the 25th. 

5 on my computer. 

6 MR. NADELHAFT: Okay. Perfect. 
7 THE COURT: That would be fine. I just· 
8 want to talk it over with you before I give any 

9 responses to anybody. 
10 MR. NADELHAFT: And just to let know you, 

11 we had been at least thinking about this, so we 

12 should --
13 THE COURT: Good, good. 
14 MR. NADELHAFT: Yeah, thank you. 
15 THE COURT: All right. Good. So, 
16 hopefully, in two weeks, we can get something 

17 together for a plan. Okay. 
18 MR. CHEW: Thank you very much, Your 

19 Honor. 
20 THE COµRT: All right. Thank you. Have 

21 a good weekend. 
22 MR. NADELHAFT: Thank you, Your Honor. 

1 
2 too. 
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:MR. CHEW: Thank you, Your Honor. You 

3 (At 1 :05 p.m, the above hearing 

4 concluded.) 

5 

6 
7 

8 :MR. NADELHAFT: So that's February 25th? 8 
9 THE COURT: February 25th at 2:00. 9 
10 :MR. NADELHAFT: Okay. 10 
11 THE COURT, If you're available for 11 
12just -- just so we can parse this out. 12 
13 :MR. CHEW: Yes, Your Honor, we're 13 

14 available. 14 
15 THE COURT: Okay. 15 
16 :MR. NADELHAFT: Just let me get -- 16 
17 THE COURT: No, absolutely. 17 
18 :MR. NADELHAFT: Yeah, I think that should 18 
19 be -- I think that should be fine. Can I ask Your 19 
20 Honor, Ms. Bredehoft may want to be at this. 20 
21 THE COURT: She can come in video or -- 21 
22 :MR. NADELHAFT: Or by phone? 22 
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